
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Lake Administration Committee 

on Friday, 26 January 2018, at 10.00 a.m. 

in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, 
Kendal 

 
 

Committee Membership 

South Lakeland District Council 

Roger Bingham 
Andrew Butcher 

Stan Collins 
David Evans 
Gill Gardner 

Brenda Gray (Vice-Chairman) 
John Holmes 
Dyan Jones 
Mel Mackie 

Annie Rawlinson 
Vivienne Rees 

Sue Sanderson (Chairman) 
Graham Vincent 

Phil Walker 
David Williams 
Mark Wilson 

 

Lakes Parish Council 

Leslie Johnson Fiona Sparrow Philip Thompson 

Windermere Town Council 

Kathleen Atkinson 

Jennifer Borer 

Leith Hallatsch 

Peter Jewell 

Adrian Legge 

 
Wednesday, 17 January 2018 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Una Bell 

 

Telephone: 01539 793248 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 8 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 6 October 2017 (copy attached). 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the item in Part II of the Agenda should be considered in 
the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations 
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so before 
the commencement of the meeting.  Information on how to make the application 
can be obtained by viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Committee Services Team on 01539 733333. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 
 
 To receive any questions or representations which have been received 

from members of the public. 
 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 
 
 To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 

members of the public. 

 

6  PROGRESS REPORT  9 - 10 

 To consider an update on progress relating to decisions made at previous 
meetings of the Committee, as at 11 January 2018. 

 

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


7  2018/19 TO 2022/23 DRAFT BUDGET  11 - 16 

 To consider the latest draft budget estimates for Lake Windermere for 2018/19 – 
2022/23. 

 

8  WINDERMERE FERRY TICKET SALES SYSTEM  17 - 32 

 To consider the proposals of the Cumbria County Council led review of the 
Ticket Sales System at Windermere Ferry. 

 

9  WINDERMERE LAKE WARDENS AND RANGERS ANNUAL REPORT 
2016-2017  

33 - 56 

 Members are asked to consider and note the Annual Report.  

10  APPLICATION TO DREDGE IN THE AREA OF PLOT 1, SOUTH OF GREY 
GABLES, STORRS  

57 - 78 

 To consider an application for permission to dredge an area of 200m2 to a depth 
of 1.5m at Plot 1, south of Grey Gables, Storrs. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)  

 

11  UPDATE ON COMMERCIAL LEASES AND ENCROACHMENTS  
 
- Paragraph 3, 5 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
- Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 

maintained in legal proceedings. 
 

79 - 86 

 To update Members on commercial leases and annual encroachments.   



This page is intentionally left blank



7 
06.10.2017 Lake Administration Committee 
 

 

LAKE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Lake Administration Committee held in the 
Marchesi Centre, Holly Road, Windermere on Friday, 6 October 2017, at 10.00 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Sue Sanderson (Chairman) 
Brenda Gray (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Andrew Butcher 

Stan Collins 
Gill Gardner 

 

John Holmes 
Dyan Jones 

Annie Rawlinson 
 

Vivienne Rees 
Phil Walker 

David Williams 
 

Representing Lakes Parish Council 
 

Leslie Johnson 
 

Fiona Sparrow 
 

Philip Thompson 
 

Representing Windermere Town Council 
 

Jennifer Borer 
 

Leith Hallatsch 
 

  
 

Apologies for absence were received from District Councillors Roger Bingham, David 
Evans, Mel Mackie, Graham Vincent and Mark Wilson, and Windermere Town Councillor 
Kathleen Atkinson. 
 

Officers 
 

Frankie Flannigan Lake and Parking Services Officer 

Julia Krier Solicitor (Property and Contracts) 

Anthea Lowe Solicitor to the Council 

Jim Maguire Community and Leisure Manager 

Paul Rogers Assistant Committee Services Officer 

Simon Rowley Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services 

David Sykes Director People and Places 

 

LA/16 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of 
the meeting of the Committee held on 30 June 2017. 
 

LA/17 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

LA/18 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the agenda be dealt with following the exclusion of 
the press and public. 
 

Page 5

Item No.2



8 
06.10.2017 Lake Administration Committee 
 

 

LA/19 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions 
have been received in respect of this meeting.  
 

LA/20 PROGRESS REPORT  
 
The Director People and Places presented a report updating Members on progress made 
on decisions taken at previous meetings of the Committee. He referred to the situation 
relating to Windermere Management Strategy as outlined in the report, and informed 
Members that the item on the Agenda relating to Windermere – Lake Action Plan 2017-
2022 would update the Committee on the matter. 
 
The Director People and Places advised that a meeting of the Lake User Forum had taken 
place on 25 September 2017 and a copy of the minutes for the meeting would be circulated 
to Members for information once received. He informed Members that the remit of the User 
Forum in relation to Lake Action Plan and how the Forum would interact with the Plan 
together with issues on the Lake had been raised at the meeting and would be discussed 
further at a meeting of the Forum in early November. 
 
With regard to works relating to the shower block at Ferry Nab Boathouse, the Lake and 
Parking Services Officer advised that work to rectify floor levels together with the installation 
of new doors would be completed within the next two weeks. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

LA/21 WINDERMERE - LAKE ACTION PLAN 2017-2022  
 
The Director People and Places presented a report which requested the Committee to 
consider adopting the draft Windermere Lake Action Plan 2017-2022. The Plan set out the 
key new actions to be undertaken to secure and improve the environment of Lake 
Windermere and land immediately around its shores and improve the community and 
economic benefits the Lake provided. It was intended that the draft Plan would build on the 
achievements of the two previous five year Lake Plans. 
 
The Director People and Places circulated an updated ‘designed’ final draft version of the 
Lake Action Plan to Members at the meeting. 
 
Appendix 1 to the Agenda report had been revised as follows which was reflected in the 
final draft version circulated at the meeting:- 
 
(i) a map was included on page 22; 
(ii) minor amendments had been made to paragraph 5.3; 
(iii) the words ‘Figure 1’ had been included in the second paragraph on page 34; 
(iv) a map was included as Map 2 on page 37. 
 
The Director People and Places emphasised that the draft Plan would be considered by the 
Lake District National Park Authority (LDNPA) on 19 October and by Cabinet on 25 October 
2017. 
 
The Director People and Places informed Members that it was the aim of the Plan to 
promote partnership and collaborative working and deliver a positive future for the Lake. 
The Plan recognised that there were other partnerships and strategic plans which guide 
and facilitate projects and actions which benefit the Lake and surrounding communities and 

Page 6



9 
06.10.2017 Lake Administration Committee 
 

 

environments. The draft Plan before the Committee did not seek to duplicate or restate the 
fundamentals of those partnerships and strategic plans. The draft Plan focused on a series 
of breakthrough actions which were not covered elsewhere and were set out in the Plan. 
Although the focus and scope of the draft Plan had not been wholly supported by all 
respondents to the consultation, the Windermere Strategy Working Group had advised that 
the Plan be presented for adoption as it would focus attention on the resources and delivery 
of the key actions. The draft Plan had, however, been revised in response to consultation. 
 
The Director People and Places emphasised that the draft Plan set out a series of 
breakthrough actions which would develop various schemes for future consideration. Bids 
for resources would need to be made at that time. He drew attention to the suggestion in 
the report that an Action Plan Delivery group be established and would include Lake users 
and other group representatives to coordinate actions and other initiatives. It was proposed 
to establish a Member Steering Group comprising representatives from LDNPA and Lake 
Administration Committee to oversee and review the Action Plan. The Steering Group 
would evolve from the Windermere Management Strategy Working Group. 
 
Several Members felt that the draft Plan was clear and straight forward and commended 
the draft Plan. 
 
Councillor Sue Sanderson, Chairman of the Committee, informed Members that to deliver 
the actions proposed in the draft Plan would require collaborative working with LDNPA and 
various other organisations that were engaging with the Council on current Lake initiatives. 
She advised that all proposed actions would be monitored and regular reports would be 
presented to the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED – That the draft Windermere Lake Action Plan 2017-2022 be adopted. 
 

LA/22 LAKE WINDERMERE FEES AND CHARGES 2018/19  
 
The Community and Leisure Manager presented a report which requested the Committee 
to consider proposals for Fees and Charges relating to Windermere Lake from 1 April 2018 
to 31 March 2019. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Fees and Charges as set out in Appendix 1 to the report, be 
approved. 
 

LA/23 PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 
12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraphs indicated. 
 

LA/24 UPDATE ON COMMERCIAL LEASES AND ENCROACHMENTS 
 
- Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 

person (including the authority holding that information) 
- Paragraph 5 - Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 

be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 
The Solicitor to the Council presented a report which provided Members with an update 
about commercial leases and annual encroachments around the Lake and the current 

Page 7



10 
06.10.2017 Lake Administration Committee 
 

 

position in relation to debt recovery actions. Progress on debt recovery had been 
maintained and significant reductions had been made since the previous report. She would 
be reporting to the next Committee meeting with regard to longer term encroachment 
agreements. 
 
Several Members expressed their thanks to the legal team for its work in achieving the 
substantial reduction in outstanding debts. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

LA/25 RE-ADMISSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That the press and public be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 11.20 a.m. 

Page 8



LAKE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

PROGRESS REPORT: as at 11th January 2018 

Minute 
no. 

Report Title Committee 
Date 

Progress Due date Officer 
 

LA/21 Lake User Forum 
Engagement 
Protocol 

5 October 
2012 

 Stakeholder engagement arrangements are being 
revised and broadened as part of the delivery of the 
new Windermere Lake Action Plan.   

 Lake User Forum is likely to become an independent 
body, yet will seek recognition in the Plan.   

 A revised engagement protocol is to be developed 
between the LDNPA, SLDC and the Forum, informed 
by the Forum’s revised terms of reference and 
constitution. 

This is an 
ongoing 
item 
 

David 
Sykes 
 
 

LA/21 Windermere Lake 
Action Plan 2017-
2022 

6th October 
2017 

 Windermere Management Strategy Working Group 

has met to agree the Plan’s governance 

arrangements.  Proposed for the Strategy Working 

Group to be replaced by a Plan Steering Group in 

the new Municipal Year. 

 Officer Delivery Group being established and 

undertaking delivery planning. 

 

Committee 
Appointment 
to Steering 
Group – 
First 
meeting of 
the 
Committee 
in the new 
municipal 
year 

 
David 
Sykes 
 
 

LA/20 Progress Report -
Works at Ferry 
Nab Boathouse 
(Showers/WC 
facilities etc.) 

7 October 
2016 

 Final stage of remedial works to floor gradients is 
taking place in February.  

April 2018 Sion 
Thomas 

  

P
age 9

Item
 N

o.6



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 10



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Lake Administration Committee  

26 January 2018 

2018/19 – 2022/23 Draft Budget 

 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: 

 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director, Resources 
and S151 Officer 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

WARDS: All 

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 
 

1.1 It is expected that the budgets for Lake Windermere will be approved by full 
Council 27 February 2018, as part of the overall 2018/19 budget.  

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

 
2.1 It is recommended that the Lake Administration Committee note the 

latest draft estimates. 
 
3.0       BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

 
3.1 The latest draft revenue budgets for 2018/19 are attached at Appendix 1.  

These will form part of the overall Draft Revenue Budget due to be presented 
to Council for consideration and approval on the 27 February 2018. 

 
3.2 The Draft Budget Report considered by Council on the 19 December 2017 

showed a balanced position corporately for 2018/19. The detailed budget 
relating to Lake Windermere, presented in Appendix 1, represents no change 
in the level of service provision from 2017/18. The estimates have changed 
year on year, the main reasons being: 

 

 Incremental progression on salary costs and the assumed pay award; 

 Unavoidable inflation on costs (e.g. premises costs); 

 Departmental Recharges reflect increased Central Support Recharges, mainly 
from Property Services, and Legal Services   

 Income from fees and charges in line with the MTFP, and adjusted to reflect 
changes in usage and revised agreements; 

 Changes to the profile of the capital programme (see 3.3 below) 

Page 11

Item No.7



 

 

 
3.3 The term “REFCUS’ in Appendix 1 relates to ‘Revenue Expenditure Funded 

from Capital Under Statute”. This is where the Council contributes to the 
capital schemes of other organisations. Under accounting regulations these 
are presented as revenue expenditure. They can be funded through capital 
resources, such as capital receipts, under statute. The figures in Appendix 1 
relate to the Council’s contribution of £400k to the Glebe scheme in 2017/18.   
 

 
4.0 CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The Draft Budget Report was considered by Cabinet 29 November 2017, 

Council 19 December 2017, and Overview and Scrutiny Committee 12 
January 2018. Final budget proposals will be presented to Council for 
approval on the 27 February 2018.   

  
5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
5.1 Relevant alternative options have been considered as part of getting the 

overall budget together for this area. No alternative options are proposed in 
this report.  

 
6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 
6.1 The budget process allocates resources in line with the Council Plan. 
 
7.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 Financial and Resources 
7.1.1 Lake Administration Committee considered the detailed proposals for fees 

and charges on 6 October 2017. The proposed fees reflected service 
demand, equity, and the MTFP target income level. In addition, some 
encroachment income is received on the basis of commercial negotiations. 
The combination of income from fees and charge proposals, plus income from 
commercially negotiated encroachments, was judged sufficient to meet the 
2018/19 income budget of £1.43m.  
 

7.2 Human Resources 
7.2.1 There are no Human Resources implications of the report. 
 
7.3 Legal 
7.3.1 There are no legal implications of the report. 
 
7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 
 

Have you completed and Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 
 
 

Page 12



 

 

 
7.5 Equality and Diversity 
 

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 
7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

All income estimates 
are subject to demand 

Variation in total income 
received 

Monthly budget 
monitoring of income 

 
CONTACT OFFICERS  
 
Jim Maguire, Community and Leisure Manager, j.maguire@southlakeland.gov.uk, 
01539 793161 
Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 
793147  
 
APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

Appendix 1 Lake Windermere Revenue Estimates 2018/19 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available  

2018/19 Budget report 
Council 19 December 2017 

https://tinyurl.com/yd3tu78d 

 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

11/01/2018 N/A N/A 11/01/2018 12/01/2018 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

29/11/2017 26/01/2018 19/12/2017 11/01/2018 11/01/2018 

Human Resource Services 
Manager 

 Leader Ward 
Councillor(s) 

n/a  n/a n/a 

 

 

Page 13

mailto:j.maguire@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://tinyurl.com/yd3tu78d


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Appendix 1

2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Approved Current

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Lake Windermere

Direct Expenditure

220 220.0 Employees 223.6 229.1 233.6 238.3 243.1

90.4 105.3 Premises 96.8 99.8 101.0 102.2 103.4

19.9 20.5 Transport 21.1 21.6 21.6 21.7 21.7

22.4 22.3 Supplies and Services 22.5 22.6 22.6 22.6 22.6

2.5 2.5 Bought-in Services 1.3 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

4.0 4.0 Central Support Services 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9

126.8 126.8 Departmental Recharges 327.1 327.1 327.1 327.1 327.1

486.0 501.4 693.3 701.7 707.4 713.4 719.4

Income

-1,356.4 -1,356.4 Customer Receipts -1,425.5 -1,459.5 -1,492.6 -1,518.6 -1,544.2

-5.8 -5.8 Internal Income -6.0 -6.2 -6.2 -6.2 -6.2

-1,362.3 -1,362.3 -1,431.5 -1,465.7 -1,498.8 -1,524.8 -1,550.4

Capital Charges

88.6 88.6 Capital Charges 93.4 93.5 93.5 93.5 74.5

400.0 400.0 REFCUS 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

488.6 488.6 93.4 93.5 93.5 93.5 74.5

-387.7 -372.3 Net Expenditure -644.7 -670.6 -697.9 -718.0 -756.5

Lake Administration Committee

The purpose of this appendix is to set out the budgets relating to Lake Windermere for 2018/19 

onwards

Warden Service of Lake Windermere.  Management of Moorings and Encroachments.  Enforcement of 

Bye-Laws.  Provision of Slipway and General Lake Service (Rescues etc.)

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 16



1 
 

South Lakeland District Council 

Lake Administration Committee 

26 January 2018 

Windermere Ferry Ticket Sales System – 
Stakeholder Engagement 

CHAIRMAN: Councillor Sue Sanderson – Chairman of the Lake 
Administration Committee 

REPORT FROM: David Sykes – Director People and Places 

REPORT AUTHOR: Una Bell – Assistant Committee Services Officer 

Claire Maclaine – Project Lead, Capital Programme and 
Property (Cumbria County Council) 

WARDS: Ambleside and Grasmere, Coniston and Crake Valley, 
Hawkshead, Windermere Applethwaite and Troutbeck, 
Windermere and Bowness North, Windermere and 
Bowness South, Staveley in Cartmel, Windermere 
Bowness North 

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 South Lakeland District Council and the Lake Administration Committee submit their 
views regarding Cumbria County Council’s Windermere Ferry Ticket Sales System 
as part of their stakeholder consultation.  

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that the Lake Administration Committee:- 

 (1)  consider the proposals of the Cumbria County Council Cabinet led 
review of the ticket sales system at Windermere Ferry; 

 (2) authorise the Director People and Place to submit a response to 
Cumbria County Council, taking into account the comments raised by the 
Committee and in consultation with the Chairman; and 

 (3) nominates a representative to attend the County Council’s engagement 
session on Friday 9 February 2018. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 This report is presented to the Lake Administration Committee, as requested by 
Cumbria County Council, to consider the review of the current ticket sales system 
and the proposals to change the ticket sales system and to respond to and provide 
its views on the proposals. It is intended that an officer of the County Council will be 
in attendance at the meeting to introduce the report’s appendices and to answer 
members’ questions. 

Page 17

Item No.8



2 
 

3.2 At its meeting in June 2017 Cumbria County Council requested its Cabinet to lead a 
review into the current ferry operations with key aims being to identify a payment 
solution which is swift, secure and available on board, whilst also safeguarding the 
income which the Ferry generates.  

3.3 The review investigated the following: 

 The background to the decision in 2015 to change the ticket payment system from on 
board cash collection to shore based machines. 

 The problems identified since the machines were introduced.  

 The actions taken or proposed to be taken to resolve the problems identified. 

 The full findings and recommendations of the review can be found at Appendix 1 to 
the report. 

3.5 The review is proposing to discontinue the on shore ticket machines and instead to 
provide a number of options for foot passengers, vehicles and cycle passengers. In 
addition the review report pledges to engage with stakeholders including Town and 
Parish Councils bordering Windermere prior to changes being implemented. 

 Appendix 2 to the report provides a summary of the proposals as well as a series of 
suggested questions that could be considered in formulating a response to the 
consultation. 

3.6 An engagement session for stakeholders will be held at Kendal County Offices on 
Friday 9 February 2018. SLDC Lake Administration Committee has been invited to 
send a nominated representative to the session, which will give stakeholders the 
opportunity to collectively discuss the proposals and ask questions. 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 The County Council undertook to engage with stakeholders prior to the changes 
being implemented. 

4.2 South Lakeland District Council (SLDC) and the Lake Administration Committee have 
been invited to respond to the review and to provide its view on the proposals.  

4.3 The County Council has proposed to engage with all ferry stakeholders prior to 
implementing any changes. Engagement would include South Lakeland Local 
Committee, the Lake District National Park Authority, South Lakeland District 
Council, Windermere Lake Administration Committee, Town and Parish Councils 
bordering the lake, local transport service providers and members of the former 
Windermere Ferry Advisory Committee. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 The Lake Administration Committee could choose not to engage as a stakeholder 
and not to respond to the review and proposals. This option is not recommended as 
the Committee’s views on the subject will not be taken into account in any final 
decisions made by the County Council. The Lake Administration Committee has a 
unique responsibility with regard to managing the lake bed and used to appoint a 
representative to the Ferry Advisory Group when in existence.  

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 The District Council is a key stakeholder in any discussion and initiative over existing 
and future management of the Lake. The Council’s priorities of promoting a stronger 
economy, promoting culture and wellbeing and protecting and enhancing the 
District’s environment all find contribution from how the Lake is managed, benefitting 
residents and visitors. 

Page 18



3 
 

 We will encourage best use of our distinctive environment as a location for attracting 
cultural activities and events that strengthen the district’s visitor economy and the 
health and wellbeing of our residents. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 The Committee is being asked to respond to a consultation which is being conducted 
by Cumbria County Council. Therefore no direct Financial and Resources 
implications are anticipated. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 The Committee is being asked to respond to a consultation which is being conducted 
by Cumbria County Council. Therefore no direct Human Resources implications are 
anticipated. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 The Committee is being asked to respond to a consultation which is being conducted 
by Cumbria County Council. Therefore no direct Legal implications are anticipated. 

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

Have you completed and Health, Social, 
Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

The Committee is being asked to respond 
to a consultation being carried out by 
Cumbria County Council. It is for the  
County Council to undertake  impact 
assessments as part of their further 
development of the proposals. 

 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

Have you completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

The Committee is being asked to respond 
to a consultation being carried out by 
Cumbria County Council. It is for the 
County Council to undertake impact 
assessments as part of the further 
development of the proposals. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Not to engage as a 
stakeholder and not to 
respond to the review and 
proposals.  

The Committee’s views 
would not be taken into 
account in any final 
decisions made by the 
County Council.  

To engage as a 
stakeholder and to 
respond to the review and 
proposals. 

 

Page 19



4 
 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Una Bell - Assistant Committee Services Officer 
una.bell@southlakeland.gov.uk  

The County Council report contained in appendices 1 and 2 have been prepared by Mike 
Smith – Assistant Director – Capital Programme and Property (Cumbria County Council) and 
Claire Maclaine – Project Lead, Capital Programme and Property (Cumbria County Council)  
claire.maclaine@cumbria.gov.uk 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Windermere Ferry Cabinet led Review – Findings and 
Recommendations. – Cumbria County Council 

2 Summary of Proposals – Cumbria County Council 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

None 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio Holder Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

11/01/18 n/a 11/01/18 11/01/18 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 26/01/18 n/a 11/01/18 11/01/18 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

11/01/18 n/a n/a   

 

Page 20

mailto:una.bell@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:claire.maclaine@cumbria.gov.uk


WINDERMERE FERRY 

CABINET LED REVIEW 

FINDINGS AND  
RECOMMENDATIONS 

Report Issued: 21 DECEMBER 2017 

Appendix 1

Page 21



  

  Page 1 

 

INDEX PAGE 
 

SECTION               PAGE  
 

1. Introduction          2 
2. Scope          2 
3. Background          3 
4. Problems identified since the machines were introduced   4 
5. Actions taken or proposed to be taken      5 
6. Next steps          6 

 
 
 APPENDIX 
 

1. Action Plan  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 22



  

  Page 2 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 

 
1.1 At its meeting in June 2017 Cumbria County Council requested Cabinet to lead a review 

into the current ferry operations with the key aims being to identify a payment solution which 
is swift, secure, and available on board whilst also safeguarding the income which the Ferry 
generates. 
 

1.2 Councillor Keith Little, portfolio holder with responsibility for Highways Transport and Fleet, 
and Councillor Janet Willis, portfolio holder with responsibility for Customer Services were 
appointed by Cabinet to lead the review supported by  officers. 

 
1.3 Councillors Little and Willis agreed the scope of the review as set out in section 2 below.  

 
 

2.0 SCOPE 
 

 
2.1 The review should investigate: 

 
2.1.1 The background to the decision in 2015 to change the ticket payment system from on 

board cash collection to shore based machines.  In particular addressing: 
 

 Health & Safety concerns 

 Customer concerns 

 The decision to stop cash handling  

 The alternative payment systems considered  

 Why the system implemented was considered the best option 

 How the change was publicised 
 

2.1.2 The problems identified since the machines were introduced.  In particular addressing: 
 

 Equality concerns: requiring mobility impaired customers to leave their vehicles to 

buy a ticket or families whose children could be in cars alone   

 Delays: ticket purchases, loading, crossings 

 Staffing structure; employees, agency, supervision, training  

 Customer concerns: ease of use of machines 

2.1.3 Actions taken or proposed to be taken to resolve the problems identified.  In particular 
addressing: 

 

 Equality concerns: mobile contactless payments would overcome the need for 

customers to leave their vehicles 

 Delays: more payment options, on shore support, on board payments  

 Staffing structure: new staffing structure, customer service training, operating 

procedures 

 Customer concerns: easier to use machines, reduced number of different ticket 

types 

 

Page 23



  

  Page 3 

3.0  BACKGROUND 
 

 
3.1 The decision in 2015 to change the ticket payment system followed a number of concerns, 

over a number of years, raised by customers that: 
  

 some customers did not buy a ticket and  

 what they perceived as inappropriate cash handling practices. 
 

3.2 Cumbria County Council carries out regular planned audit assurance.  Management Audit 
Unit reports on Windermere Ferry Income were produced in 2011, 2012, and 2013.    The 
reports note that the controls operating over Windermere Ferry income provided limited 
assurance (the lowest level) and recommendations were made each time for improvement.  
However the reports also acknowledged that any discrepancies in ticket/contract sales, 
income received, and income banked were not large. Despite this, concerns continued to be 
raised by customers during 2014 & 2015. 
 

3.3 Health and Safety concerns were also identified in relation to risks associated with the cash 
collection system which could put individuals in a vulnerable position.   

 
3.4 In September 2015 the Corporate Management Team (Chief Executive, Corporate Directors 

and statutory officers) discussed the concerns raised and decided that cash handling could 
no longer be supported.  It was agreed that alternative ticket payment methods should be 
explored. 

 
3.5 A project team was established to consider the options and the following month a briefing 

note setting out the proposal to change the ticket payment system from on board cash 
collection to shore based ticket machines was produced.  Under the County Council’s 
Constitution decisions on operational issues, such as this, are delegated to officers with the 
portfolio holder briefed for information. 

 
3.6 The option to introduce ticket machines to avoid cash handling is one that had been 

considered by the ferry operations team for a number of years but not pursued because of 
the challenge of being able to sell sufficient tickets on board during the short crossing and 
concerns about potentially negative customer feedback.   

 
3.7 The decision to rely on shore based ticket machines was seen as the solution to the on 

board logistical problem and also avoided the potential Health and Safety risk of all vehicle 
drivers being required to leave their vehicles and move around the deck whilst the ferry was 
in motion. 

 
3.8 The proposed choice of ticket machines largely drew on an established relationship with a 

large supplier to local authorities across the UK which gave confidence that the machines 
were robust, well supported and competitively priced.  In total five machines were proposed 
to be installed; two on either shore and one on board to provide an additional payment 
option for customers. 

 
3.9 The briefing note included a delivery programme and provided for appropriate testing and 

consultation prior to the planned implementation in January 2016.  It was proposed that all 
ferry stakeholders would be consulted including South Lakeland District Council, 
Windermere Lake Committee, South Lakeland Local Committee, local transport service 
providers and previous members of the former Windermere Ferry Advisory Committee.   

Page 24



  

  Page 4 

 
3.10 During part of November 2015 (Storm Abigail) and then most of December (Storm 

Desmond) the team working on the implementation of the new payment system were 
diverted onto the emergency response and subsequent recovery phase of flood related 
work. 

 
3.11 The period from January to June 2016 was one of unprecedented levels of activity across 

the highway service.  Much of this activity was managed and led by the same officers that 
were also responsible for the implementation of the new ticketing system.  As a result 
implementation was delayed until June 2016 when the new machines were installed. 

 
3.12 From the evidence available, including interviews with the project team, it is clear that whilst 

some of the planned consultation took place it was not as full as had been intended.  This 
resulted in the opportunity to learn from stakeholders being missed.   

 
3.13 It is also evident that the intended testing of the new machines prior to switching from on 

board cash handling did not happen.   
 

3.14 The risks associated with missing these programme steps were recognised.  It was 
believed, however, that implementation in June 2016 gave adequate time before the busy 
summer holiday period to identify and correct any problems. 

 

4.0  PROBLEMS IDENTIFIED WHEN THE MACHINES WERE INTRODUCED 
 

 
4.1 Immediately the machines were installed and used by customers problems were identified.  

They fell into three main areas: 
 

 The number of ticket types available combined with the choice of payment 
methods resulted in too many steps, or separate decision points, to complete a 
transaction in a timely manner.   

 The instructions on the machines were not clear.   

 Chip and pin transactions required a mobile broadband signal which on occasion 
“dropped out” during transactions causing them to fail and the transaction not 
being completed. 

  
4.2 During peak times potentially 18 vehicle drivers and 50 plus foot passengers and cyclists 

could be queueing to buy tickets.   
 

4.3 To avoid the previous concerns that some customers used the ferry without purchasing a 
ticket the operations team implemented a procedure to check all tickets before boarding. 

 
4.4 As a result boarding times slowed significantly.  Typical return ferry trips slowed from 

around 20 minutes to around 30 minutes.  Fewer ferry crossings in turn caused longer 
queues at peak times. 

 
4.5 A number of vehicle drivers either pre purchase tickets or, if blue badge holders, travel free 

and therefore do not need to buy a ticket at the machines.  Some of these drivers, frustrated 
with the slow loading caused by the queues at the ticket machines, attempted to overtake 
waiting cars and drive straight onto the ferry.  This resulted in a number of confrontations, 
with fellow passengers and ferry staff.   

 

Page 25



  

  Page 5 

4.6 The use of the ticket machines required all drivers to leave their cars, sometimes some 
distance from the machines, to buy a ticket.  Equality concerns were raised particularly with 
regard to drivers with mobility issues or parents traveling alone with children.   

 
4.7 The narrowness of the lane leading to the ferry also raised some health and safety 

concerns relating to drivers being required to step out of their vehicle into the middle of the 
road to buy a ticket.  The risk of an accident when cars were travelling in the other lane, 
either leaving the ferry or turning around to avoid queueing, was identified although the low 
travel speed on this section of road helped mitigate this risk.   

 

4.8 The staff structure was also identified as a barrier to resolving some of the issues.  The 
supervisor post had been removed as part of a budget saving measure therefore there was 
no one on board with overall responsibility.  Whilst the service is a seven days a week offer 
the permanent staff are employed Monday to Friday.  A number of staff were seconded on 
an ad hoc basis from highways operational duties.  When permanent staff were not 
available the rota was supplemented by agency workers, sometimes with no previous 
experience. 

 
4.9 Significant negative customer feedback, including social media, radio, press coverage and a 

petition of over 3,000 signatures, followed.  A number of Freedom of Information requests 
were also received by the Council. 

 
4.10 In general the feedback was critical of the ticket machines and sought to return to the 

previous cash handling process.  Many also requested a return to the original 20 minute 
turnaround time. 

 

5.0  ACTIONS TAKEN OR PROPOSED TO BE TAKEN 
 

  
5.1 As soon as it was evident that the ticket machine sales process required too many steps 

prompt action was taken to have the software re-written.  Regrettably this software revision 
took longer than originally promised.  Action was also taken to make the instructions on the 
machines clearer. 
 

5.2 Following these changes some customers still experienced difficulties purchasing tickets 
from the machines.  As a temporary measure whilst the software was being revised and a 
better system developed, potentially using different machines, two additional shore based 
staff were put in place to help customers use the machines. New “graphical” step by step 
instruction signs were also put next to the machines to guide customers through the 
process. 

 
5.3 Partly to address the equality concerns but also to speed up the ticket sales, and therefore 

boarding, handheld contactless payment machines were introduced which enabled the ferry 
operatives to take payments at the driver’s window.  This payment method was intended to 
be available either whilst waiting for the ferry, at the point of boarding or on board.  

 
5.4 To some extent these actions have addressed a number of customers concerns.  An 

independent customer survey was commissioned from Bauer Media Group during the 
October 2017 half term.  It identified that the majority of ferry customers are visitors to the 
Lakes, over 77% had no difficulty purchasing a ticket and over 92% had a positive 
experience.  Locally based customers tended to be more critical than visitors of the process 
and experience.  

 

Page 26



  

  Page 6 

5.5 The options for a better ticket sales system continues to be investigated although mobile 
cash handling with appropriate audit controls remains the challenge.   

 
5.6 The ambition in the Council request to Cabinet is an on board payment system.  Whilst on 

board payments are already available the option for ferry users to either pay on shore or on 
board continues to slow the loading process and enables the potential for “queue jumping”.  
It is therefore proposed to discontinue the on shore machines.   

 
5.7 The proposal for foot passengers is an on board machine but with just one ticket choice and 

therefore a reduced number of steps in the transaction compared to the current 
arrangement.  There are some concerns about the ability of one machine to handle the 
volume of passengers at peak times but this will be monitored.  It is further proposed that all 
vehicles and cyclists pay on board.  The current signage will be changed to make the new 
arrangements clear to customers.  This should speed up the loading process and therefore 
ferry turnaround times.   

 
5.8 It is anticipated that most vehicle customers will either pre-purchase their ticket or use either 

card or smart phones to pay the ferry operative from their car.  To provide for cash 
payments from what is anticipated to be one or two vehicles per crossing a deck mounted 
machine will be available.  Customers who wish to pay by cash will need to leave their 
vehicle and operating procedures will be developed to manage movement around the deck 
during the crossing safely.  It is proposed that cyclists will also either pay the ferry operative 
if using a card or smart phone or use the deck mounted machine for cash transactions. 

 
5.9 As almost 90% of the income generated by the ferry is from vehicles it is proposed that the 

ferry operatives focus their time during the crossing, 3 to 5 minutes, on ensuring all vehicle 
drivers have valid tickets.   

 
5.10 The ticket machines proposed to be used by the ferry operatives are currently being tested 

but will incorporate software that enables a simple upload of transaction information each 
day to ensure appropriate management information is captured.  They also need to be 
waterproof.  To further support management information and safe operating procedures 
people and vehicle counters will be used on board and consideration is being given to the 
use of CCTV. 

 
5.11 To encourage the pre-purchase of tickets a website is being developed as well as a smart 

phone app so that tickets can be purchased at any time, potentially whilst customers are 
waiting for the ferry. 

 
5.12 A new staff structure has also been established.  This has taken into account the seven 

days a week operation and will see a supervisor appointed who will ensure operating 
procedures are followed.  Following appointments the permanent team will be trained in the 
new operating procedures and customer service expectations and standards.  

 

6.0  NEXT STEPS 
 

  
6.1 In view of the lessons learned from the implementation of the ticket machines in 2016 it is 

proposed to first engage with all ferry stakeholders prior to implementing any further 
changes.  Engagement should include South Lakeland Local Committee, the Lake District 
National Park Authority, South Lakeland District Council, Windermere Lake Administration 
Committee, Town & Parish Councils bordering the lake, local transport service providers 
and members of the former Windermere Ferry Advisory Committee.  It is also proposed that 

Page 27



  

  Page 7 

as part of that engagement consideration should be given to reinstating the former 
Windermere Ferry Advisory Committee, its membership and terms of reference.  
 

6.2 Prior to the introduction of any new equipment or technology it should be thoroughly tested 
by operations staff and customers to ensure it is fit for purpose.  
 

6.3 It is proposed that the new arrangements should be in place prior to the start of the busy 
holiday periods in 2018. 

 
 
 
 
For any queries about this report please contact Mike Smith, Assistant Director – Capital 
Programme and Property, on 07717 003727 or at mike.smith@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

Page 28



  

  Page 8 

APPENDIX 1 - ACTION PLAN 
 

ACTION OWNER DATE IMPACT 

Report Published on Ferry 
website 

Mike 
Smith 

21 December Public awareness of 
background, issues and 
proposed solutions  

2018    

Stakeholder engagement  Claire 
Maclaine 

Start mid 
January 

Raise awareness of issues 
and proposed solutions.  
Learn from others 
experience.  Customer 
feedback. 

Refinement of ticketing 
options based on stakeholder 
engagement   

   

New machines require 8-10 
weeks lead time from order 
to installation 

   

In-house testing of software 
and machines 

   

Trial new proposals with 
customers prior to going live  

   

New staff structure put in 
place 

   

Operating procedures 
developed 

   

Staff training provided    

New ticket systems go live 
for public use 

   

Review performance of ferry 
and ticketing systems at 1 
month, 3 months and 6 
months 

   

Refinements to systems, 
procedures,  staff training, 
and pubic information 

   

Repeat customer satisfaction 
survey 6 months after 
systems goes live 

   

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Windermere Ferry Ticket Sales System 
Stakeholder Engagement – January 2018 

On 21 December 2017, Cumbria County Council published the findings and 
recommendations from the Cabinet Led Review of the current ticket sales system at 
Windermere Ferry. The review is proposing to discontinue the on shore ticket 
machines and instead provide: 

Foot passengers: 
 An on-board machine with just one ticket choice, payment by cash or card with 
a reduced number of steps in the transaction compared to the current arrangement.  
There are some concerns about the ability of one machine to handle the volume of 
foot passengers at peak times and this will be monitored. 

Vehicles: 
Passengers will be encouraged to either pre-purchase their ticket online or use 
card or smart phone to pay the ferry operative whilst remaining in their vehicle. 
Customers who wish to pay by cash will need to leave their vehicles and use 
the ticket machine provided on the car deck.  

Cycle passengers: 
Cyclists will also either pay the ferry operative if using a card or smart phone or 
use the deck mounted ticket machine for cash transactions. 

To encourage pre-purchase of tickets a website and a smart phone app are being 
developed so tickets can be purchased at any time, potentially whilst vehicle and foot 
passengers are waiting for the ferry. 

The report states that in view of the lessons learned from the implementation of the 
current ticket machines in 2016, the County Council will first engage with all ferry 
stakeholders prior to implementing any further changes.  Cumbria County Council 
is inviting your organisation as a key stakeholder to respond to the proposals.  
Questions which you may wish to consider in your response include: 

 Does your organisation support the proposal to discontinue the on-shore
ticket machines?

 What are your views on our proposals for vehicle, cycle and foot passengers?

 Are there benefits in providing ticket machines on shore for foot and cycle
passengers only so pedestrians and cyclists have the option of purchasing a
ticket whilst they wait for the ferry as well as purchasing on-board?

 What can we do to encourage passengers to pre-purchase their tickets
online?

 Does your organisation support the re-instatement of the Windermere Ferry
Advisory Group to meet once a year and advise County Council Local
Committee on price levels and receive an annual report on activity?

 Do you have any other suggestions or comments about ticketing?

Responses should be emailed to claire.maclaine@cumbria.gov.uk or sent to 
Claire Maclaine, Cumbria County Council, County Offices, Busher Walk, 
Kendal, LA9 4RQ to be received by Sunday 4 February 2018.   

Appendix 2

Page 31

mailto:claire.maclaine@cumbria.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



1 
 

South Lakeland District Council 

Lake Administration Committee 

26 January 2018 

Windermere Lake Wardens and Rangers 

Annual Report 2016/17 

 

PORTFOLIO: Not Applicable 

REPORT FROM: David Sykes - Director People and Places 

REPORT AUTHOR: Frankie Flannigan – Lake and Parking Services 
Officer 

WARDS: Not Applicable 

FORWARD PLAN: Not Applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 Members note the report 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that members note the contents of the report 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 The Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Annual report covers our 
joint operational activities from 30th September 2016 to 1st October 2017.It is 
intended to inform members, stakeholders, lake users and officers of the 
range of services delivered and the achievements undertaken, and to provide 
an illustration of how and who has used the lake during the period this report 
covers. 

3.2      The report is structured into the topics used in the Lake District National Park 
Partnership Plan and Vision for the Lake District; a prosperous economy, 
world class visitor experience, vibrant communities and spectacular 
landscape. 

3.3      A full copy of the report is provided in Appendix 1.  

 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 This Report is co-authored with the Lake District National Park Authority 
(LDNPA) who have provided information text and illustrations for the report. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 None 

Page 33

Item No.9



2 
 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 The safe management of Lake Windermere and its users by the Lake 
Wardens and Lake Rangers meets a number of Council priorities including 
environment and health and wellbeing. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 None 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no staff implications. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 There are no legal implications 

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1  

Have you completed and Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1  

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

There is no risk. This is 
an information report 

  

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Frankie Flannigan, Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer , 
Phone    01539796165 , f.flannigan@southlakeland.gov.uk  

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Annual Report 
2016/17 

 

Page 34

mailto:f.flannigan@southlakeland.gov.uk


3 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available  

None  

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

04/01/2018  04/01/2018 n/a n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 26/01/2018 n/a 04/01/2018 n/a 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Annual Report   1 October 2016 - 30 September 2017

Windermere
Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

Appendix 1

Page 37



Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

page 1

Contents

page

1. Introduction 2

2. The lake wardens and the lake 
ranger teams 2

2.1 The wardens and rangers 

working together 2  

2.2 The lake wardens 2

2.3 The lake rangers 3

3. A prosperous economy 4

3.1 Lake usage 4

3.2 Boat registrations 4

3.3 Moorings 5

3.4 Slipway 7

3.5 Winter storage 7

4. World class visitor experiences 8

4.1 Information sharing 8

4.2 Education and formal training 

courses 8

4.3 Events on Windermere 11

4.4 Windermere Boat Show 11

5. Vibrant communities 12

5.1 The Windermere Lake User Forum 12

5.2 Windermere byelaw exemption 

applications 12

5.3 Incidents on the lake 12

5.4 Byelaw incidents 14

6. Spectacular landscape, wildlife and 
cultural heritage 14

6.1 Water quality and bathing waters 15

6.2 Geese management 17

Useful links 18

Page 38



page 2

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

1. Introduction 

Welcome to the annual report of the Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger

Services. This report covers our activities from 1 October 2016 to 30 September

2017, with additions including October and November 2017 in regards to bathing

waters and United Utilities works updates. It is intended to inform partners, senior

managers and lake users of our achievements and activities. It also provides an

illustration of how and who has used the lake during the period this report covers.

Divided into the following sections, information provided in this report reflects the

strategies identified in the Lake District National Park Authority (LDNPA) partnership plan

2010 to 2015i, which was reiterated in the partnership plan for 2015 to 2020ii; 

• A prosperous economy

• World-class visitor experiences

• Vibrant communities

• Spectacular landscapes, wildlife and cultural heritage

Figure 1 - Parsonage bay aerial view

2. The lake wardens and the lake ranger teams 

2.1 The wardens and rangers working together  

The Wardens and Rangers have continued to work together successfully from the joint

base at Ferry Nab. Regular joint team meetings have been held during the reporting

period, bringing the teams together. The Rangers have assisted the Wardens with

rescues and the two teams worked closely for The Great North Swim and other events

where they provided safety cover. The wardens and rangers also worked together in

delivering talks to South Windermere Sailing Club and Ambleside and District Rotary.

The roles of Wardens and Rangers were explained and boats were available for

inspection.

2.2 The lake wardens

South Lakeland District Council (SLDC) provide a Lake Warden service on the lake which

includes; a patrol and rescue service, manage lake moorings, boat winter storage and

other customer and boat services at the Ferry Nab office. All wardens are trained in first

aid and provide Royal Yachting Association powerboat training for other agencies. They

also inspect and maintain the public jetties, including the jetties at YMCA Lakeside and

The National Trust’s Bark Barn. Additionally, an important role is to monitor lake

encroachments and provide advice, guidance and support to all lake users.  

Page 39



Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

page 3

2.3 The lake rangers

To encourage all the users of the lake to enjoy Windermere safely we need to sustain the

current levels of assistance, advice, education and persuasion to the general public in

order to maintain compliance with the byelaws. The LDNPA Lake Ranger Team is made

up of a team of four staff who manage and work closely with 28 Voluntary Lake Rangers

and Voluntary Boat Crew. This year we have recruited an additional 12 Volunteers to the

team to help support our work. These volunteers undertake a training programme and

learn on the job skills from our existing team of staff and volunteers.  

A lake warden on duty

Lake rangers on duty

Page 40



page 4

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

3. A prosperous economy

The LDNPA partnership document for 2010 to 2015 identified a prosperous economy as

supporting and developing profitable farming and forestry businesses while promoting

sustainable land management. It also wanted to ensure the rural economy was

strengthened through environmentally conscious economic growth, increased skills and

wages assisted by improved communications infrastructure. The 2015 to 2020

partnership document focused on the significance of the traditional farming practices in

the Lake District, which was also identified in the nomination document for world heritage

status 2017.   

The Lake District’s economy is centred on the community it serves and the spectacular

landscapes which have been preserved by land managers. It is also supported by a

strong visitor economy attracted by the environment and lifestyle it offers. Lake

Windermere forms one of these assets and the economic output from the activities in and

around the lake contribute to both the local and visitor economies.

3.1 Lake usage  

Lake usage has been measured using the following sources of data:

• Boat registrations

• Moorings

• Slipway

• Winter storage

3.2 Boat registrations 

All power driven vessels used on the Lake Windermere must be registered with LDNPA.

Table 1a details the figures over the past five years and demonstrates that the total

number of registrations has stayed reasonably consistent from 3,524 up to 3,764 from

October 2012 to September 2017. 

The number of new registrations in 2017 is the highest since 2015 at 3,577. Table 1a

shows in percentage terms the difference proportionally between new registrations and

renewals. These proportions have stayed within a 3% variance over the five year period.  

Table 1a - Boat registrations

Power driven boat
registrations

Oct 2016 -
Sept 2017

Oct 2015 -
Sept 2016

Oct 2014 -
Sept 2015

Oct 2013 -
Sept 2014

Oct 2012 -
Sept 2013

New registrations 772 (22%) 744 (21%) 687 (19%) 729 (19%) 691 (18%)

Renewals 2,805

(78%)

2,780

(79%)

2,927

(81%)

3,025

(81%)

3,073

(82%)

Totals 3,577 3,524 3,614 3,754 3,764

Page 41



Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

page 5

Table 1b - Boat registrations for power driven vessels

3.3 Moorings

During June to August 2017 the Lake Wardens in conjunction with SLDC’s research and

information officer have completed a full survey of all the mooring sites to ensure all the

information held on the boat mooring system is correct. For the first time, the mooring sites

have been plotted using grid references to create digital maps of all the area. The Mooring

maps will eventually be available on the council website as part of the customer connect

programme as it evolves; further details will follow in 2018.

Mooring sites in less accessible areas remain difficult to let and privately owned lakeshore

tender storage and access points have further declined as properties are being sold and

developed. There are plans to increase the tender storage capacity at Ferry Nab to

alleviate the issues experienced by customers. Currently plans are in place to extend the

dinghy racks by a further 12 spaces in 2018.

There are a total of 1,034 mooring sites on the Lake for which the SLDC have planning

consent. However, due to 270 mooring sites being unsuitable because of no public

access, sites designated as SSSI’s or insurance concerns, the actual number of mooring

sites available to let is reduced to 764. During the spring of 2017, 21 moorings were

terminated due to the marina development for Windermere Aquatic in Bowness Bay. 

There are 718 mooring sites which are currently leased as detailed in table 2a. This

means that viable mooring sites are currently at 94% occupancy with 46 available to be

leased during the next reporting period.

Page 42



page 6

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

Table 2a - Breakdown of the mooring usage by fee type since October 2012

Fee
type

Description Oct 2016 -
Sept 2017

Oct 2015 -
Sept 2016

Oct 2014 -
Sept 2015

Oct 2013 -
Sept 2014

Oct 2012 -
Sept 2013

A Open deck

yacht

34 32 32 32 32

B Retained

moorings

currently without

boat attached

49 50 51 56 55

C Craft - 11m

overall length

charged per

metre

581 576 578 602 607

D Commercial

mooring*

6 19 20 22 25

E No fee 

(this applies to

sites tied to

lakeshore

properties

which are

currently

unused)

46 49 49 50 49

S Service

moorings

2 7 7 7 7

Totals 718 733 736 767 774

* The reduction of commercial moorings by 13 is a result of Windermere Aquatics expansion in July 2017.

Table 2b - Mooring usage October 2016 - September 2017

Page 43



Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

page 7

3.4 Slipway 

The number of vessels paying to launch at Ferry Nab during the reporting period has

reduced by 5% during the reporting period to 815. This is partly due to poor weather

conditions over the reporting period, which unfortunately reduced some visitor numbers

to Ferry Nab. It is worth noting, however, that these figures do not include use of the

slipway by permanent mooring and berth holders as they receive free use of the slipway

and therefore there is no accountable transaction. None powered vessels such as canoes

and dinghies also receive free use of the slipway and are not included in the figures.

Table 3a - Slipway usage since October 2012

Table 3b - Slipway usage since October 2012

3.5 Winter storage   

There is capacity for 155 boats from 5m to 11.5m to be stored at Ferry Nab over winter.

During the winter of 2016/17 151 boats were stored in three locations; main car park,

overspill car park and Braithwaite fold overspill.  

Boats are stored from mid-October until the end of March; all boats are to be removed

from storage before the Easter weekend, which is 30 March 2018. 

Slipway usage Craft numbers

1 October 2016 to 30 September 2017 815

1 October 2015 to 30 September 2016 859

1 October 2014 to 30 September 2015 691

1 October 2013 to 30 September 2014 822

1 October 2012 to 30 September 2013 988

Page 44



4. World class visitor experiences 

A world class visitor experience provides high quality and unique experiences for visitors

within a stunning and globally significant landscape. We also strive to extend the

international appeal and quality of Lake Windermere as a visitor destination by supporting

a range of events, providing education and quality services to other agencies.

4.1 Information sharing

The customer information portal has proved popular since installation in the reception

area at the Ferry Nab office in May 2016. There are contributions from SLDC, LDNPA and

The Environment Agency providing service information from these organisations including

environmental information on invasive species.  

The Windermere Lake User Guide were revised for the 2017 season; this year they

showed additional jetties where some hotels allow customers permission to moor boats.

In 2017, 30,000 copies of the guide were printed and distributed to key public information

sites around the lake. These guides show where users can access the lake and promote

important safety messages. These guides will be updated and provided in 2018.

Laminated chart maps of the lake can also be purchased from the Lake Wardens at Ferry

Nab. These give information about the lake including the location of public jetties. 

page 8

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

Trainees enjoying a course on Lake Windermere

4.2 Education and formal training courses 

Ferry Nab continues to hold the status as a Royal Yachting Association (RYA) training

centre providing certified courses to official bodies and other authorities. During the 2016

to 2017 season the Lake Wardens delivered a range of formal courses in the following

areas of expertise;

• Royal Yachting Association National Powerboat Certificate Level 2 training

Was provided to Windermere Lake Cruises, Cumbria Fire & Rescue Service,

Maritime Volunteer Service and, for the first time three lake users aged 16 to 18.

Page 45



Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

• Cumbria Constabulary support

The wardens assisted with a boat and Helmsman to assist with the training of

their new body recovery dogs. These dogs are able to identify bodies in water

environments and training will continue through the winter months.

• Boat maintenance training

SLDC staff members underwent training for the maintenance and upkeep of the

jet drive gear box, enabling in-house maintenance to be carried out.

• Volunteers training

All our new LDNPA volunteers are now trained to RYA Level 2 and Marine VHF

radio. The existing Volunteers continue to go through a robust training

programme each year. At the start of 2017 season volunteers were trained in

elements of the RYA Level 2 and RYA safety boat syllabuses. This training took

place at Coniston Boating Centre.

• Schools and groups visits

This year the Lake Wardens have completed water safety talks to 14 primary

schools in the South Lakeland area totalling 424 pupils. There were nine schools

visits to Ferry Nab, where the rangers and warden worked together to deliver

practical throw line exercises. The Lake Wardens took small groups of children

and teaching staff out on the lake in the patrol boat. The feedback we received

from the schools was extremely positive and the wardens will be keen to

welcome schools to Ferry Nab over the next reporting year.  We have also had

group visits from local Girl Guiding groups who learnt about the role Lake

Wardens have on Lake Windermere.

page 9

Cumbria Constabulary with the body recovery dogs at Ferry Nab

Page 46



• Cruise with a ranger experiences

There were six ‘Cruise with a Ranger’ experiences, over the summer. These are

where a Lake Ranger joins a Windermere Lake Cruise to talk to the passengers

about the work of the National Park on and around Windermere, the history of the

lake and any points of interest on the four journeys that can be made on the lake.

Cruise with a Ranger events will take place again in 2018 and it is hoped the

Rangers will be joined by the Wardens. These are a great opportunity to meet the

public and explain our roles. 

• Water safety initiatives 

A range of events and activities take place on Windermere to promote water

safety. These include initiatives with the Swim Safe Campaign and we have

supported many activities with the RNLI. The Lake Rangers and volunteers

continue to work closely with the RNLI in order to deliver life jacket check clinics.

This was the second season of delivering this initiative. 

We undertook life jacket clinics at Windermere, Ullswater, Derwent Water and

Coniston. The Lake Rangers have also produced four safety videos promoting

safety on carbon monoxide, kill cords, the use of visibility devises by swimmers

and life jacket checks. These have been promoted through our website and

social media. Carbon monoxide safety has been promoted by the Wardens and

the Rangers through the promotion and handing out of leaflets and selling carbon

monoxide detectors at Ferry Nab.  

page 10

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

Askam Girl Guides on their visit to Ferry
Nab

A thank you letter from one of the schools who visited
Ferry Nab in the summer of 2017

Page 47



Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

4.3 Events on Windermere 

Windermere is host to a wide range of events, from small groups to high profiled televised

events.  A flavour of the events supported by local and national organisations which took

place this year include:

• Great North Swim; with approximately 10,000 participants

• Big Chill Swim; with over 200 participants

• Windermere Motor Boat Racing; two events with approximately over 500

participants

• Boat Parade; with 12 boats taking part

• Swim Safe; with approximately 1,500 participants including schools

• Windermere Triathlon; with over 300 participants 

• The Windermere Boat Show with 2, 400 participants

• Winter Series Sail Racing – with 34 entries and 13 race days from November

2016 to March 2017. Three planned races had to be abandoned due to inclement

weather

4.4 Windermere Boat Show

On Friday 12 to Sunday 14 May 2017 the second Windermere Boat Show was held at

Ferry Nab and other locations around the Lake. SLDC provided an information point which

was supported by the wardens who were also on duty. This was well supported by local

organisations and businesses. We look forward to hosting the boat show again in 2018.

page 11

A sail racing boat on the lake

Page 48



page 12

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

5. Vibrant communities    

Vibrant communities are people successfully living, working and relaxing within

upland, valley and lakeside places where distinctive local character is maintained

and celebrated.

Both services work closely with the lake community to ensure that the lake is as

safe and as welcoming as possible for all users. This includes:

• Supporting the Windermere Lake User Forum

• Administration of Windermere Byelaw exemptions

• Educational activities on water safety 

• Lake Ranger and Lake Wardens active presence on the lake.

• Providing support, advice and guidance for outdoor recreational events.

5.1 The Windermere Lake User Forum 

The Windermere Lake User Forum has provided advice to the Lake Rangers on the Lake

Safety Promotional Campaign for the 2017 season, influenced the discussion on wifi

needs on the lake and inputted into the development of the Windermere Lake Action Plan

for 2017-2022. 

It continues to represent the views of approximately 8000 Lake Users through consultation

with the LDNPA, SLDC and United Utilities on topics such as the proposed Boat Safety

Scheme, Drought Planning, Future Water Resource Management, Flood issues,

developments at Fell Foot Park, improvements to the Glebe and the development of the

Windermere Management Strategy.

5.2 Windermere byelaw exemption applications

Within the 2008 Windermere Navigation byelaws, byelaw 12 allows individuals and

organisations to apply to the LDNPA for exemptions from the speed limits and other

byelaws. One exemption application from Windermere Motor Boat Racing Club had

already received approval for two race events in 2017. During 2017 we received another

Windermere byelaw exemption application from Windermere Motor Boat Racing Club for

additional race events in 2018. An additional race event in 2018 was approved with

conditions. This takes the total number of race events Windermere Motor Boat Racing

Club have approval for in 2018 to three. 

5.3 Incidents on the lake 

The Wardens have attended a number of incidents during the reporting period, supported

on occasion by the Lake Rangers. What is classed as an incident on the lake covers a

very diverse range of occurrences, from rescue situations to a boater who has run out of

fuel. Most common incidents are observed during routine boat patrols where remedial

action is taken; the relevant person or organisation is notified of any action taken or issues

which need attention. 

Page 49



Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

Table 4 - Incident Analysis recorded by the Lake Wardens for October 2016 –

September 2017

page 13

Sports

Boats

Yachts Motor

Cruisers

Jet

Skis

Canoes/

Row

Misc Totals

Fatality (lake based) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Personal injury /

illness

0 0 2 0 1 2 4

P/injury third party 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Persons in water 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

A) fallen overboard 0 0 1 0 1 0 2

B) capsized 0 3 0 1 4 0 7

C) jumped in /

swimming

0 0 1 0 1 2 4

Sinking / sunk 2 3 3 0 0 0 8

Collisions 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Adrift / ashore 20 46 19 0 5 2 92

Damage to

boat/property

0 5 0 0 1 0 6

Problem with

mooring / strops

0 29 4 0 0 1 33

Broken down not

adrift

6 3 2 0 1 0 11

Wildlife / animals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Complaints 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

A) behaviour 1 0 0 0 1 0 2

B) crime/theft 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

C) other 0 2 3 0 1 0 4

Fire 1 2 0 0 0 1 4

Missing persons 0 0 0 0 2 0 2

Pollution 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other hazards* 1 4 3 0 1 2 8

Defibrillator (land

based)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Totals 31 95 40 0 14 11 191

* During the reporting period this refers to one incident of retrieving part of a jetty which was adrift on the lake.
In previous years this could also include large objects adrift and a potential hazard.

Page 50



page 14

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

Boats on moorings with a vista of the World Heritage Site from Lake Windermere

5.4 Byelaw incidents   

The LDNPA Lake Ranger Team continue to record all their interactions with lake users on

a computer database system which is on all the National Park Windermere patrol boats.

The number of recorded navigation offences have increased slightly compared with last

year. There were 136 navigation offences this year compared with 134 for the same

period last year. 

The number of recorded registration offences for this year was 179. This is a decrease

on last year when we saw 265 offences for the same period. 

The Lake Rangers received 16 complaints of alleged byelaw breaches during the

reporting period, which is comparable to the 12 received during the last reporting period.

Every complaint was responded to by phone, email or letter and each report was

investigated and recorded.

During the period 1 October 2016 to 30 September 2017 we have reported six separate

cases for prosecutions. Five were for beaches of the navigation byelaws which are being

taken to the magistrate’s court in the next reporting period.  One was for a breach of the

registration bylaws which is being taken to the magistrate’s court in the next reporting

period. 

6. Spectacular landscape, wildlife and cultural heritage

Lake Windermere sits within a unique landscape which is universally valued. It is

located within an internationally recognised National Park and World Heritage Site

in which natural and cultural resources are assets to be managed and used wisely

for future generations.

The Wardens and Rangers aim to assist with improving the natural environment in

and around the Lake to ensure a healthy, diverse and high quality biodiversity on

land and on water. Water quality and habitat management schemes are in operation

throughout different points of the year.

Page 51



Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

6.1 Water quality and bathing waters

The Lake Rangers have continued to work closely with the Environment Agency and have

supported them with blue green algae surveys across different areas of the Lake. 

In November 2017 SLDC were informed that the bathing waters in Windermere were

classified as ‘excellent’ by the Department for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

(DEFRA). This classification will remain for the next bathing season which runs from 15

May to 30 September 2018. This is the fourth consecutive year that SLDC have held the

‘excellent’ classification status and continued to maintain the high standards of water

quality on the lake. 

Water quality classification signage has been in place since 2015 and updated information

can be found at Millerground, Fellfoot, Rayrigg and YMCA bathing sites which fulfils the

2017 criteria. 

Below is a table for comparison of bathing water ratings across the North West;

page 15

Page 52



page 16

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

Table 6 - bathing water classifications 2017 

Area Bathing water 2017 result

Blackpool Blackpool South Excellent

Blackpool Central Good

Blackpool North Good

Cumbria Coast Haverigg Sufficient

Silecroft Excellent

Seascale Good

St Bees Excellent

Allonby South Sufficient

Allonby Good

Silloth Sufficient

Fylde Coast Fleetwood Good

Cleveleys Good

Bispham Good

St Annes North Good

St Annes Good

Morecambe Bay Morecambe South Good

Morecambe North Good

Sefton Coast Formby Excellent

Ainsdale Good

Southport Good

Walney Island Biggar Bank Sufficient

Sandy Gap Sufficient

West Shore Sufficient

Windermere Lakeside YMCA Excellent

Millerground Landing Excellent

Rayrigg Meadow Excellent

Fellfoot Excellent

Wirral West Kirby Excellent

Meols Excellent

Moreton Excellent

Wallasey Good

Page 53



Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

page 17

United Utilities completed works on the pipeline which closed part of Ferry Nab car park

from September to October 2017. Work was completed to allow winter storage facilities

in the car park and was completed with the minimum of disruption with no concerns

reported. United Utilities will be continuing this work in January 2018 and will be working

closely with the Lake Wardens and SLDC at Ferry Nab to ensure it is sensitively

managed.

6.2 Geese management 

The Lake Rangers and SLDC have supported the work of the Windermere Geese

Management Group with non-lethal management techniques to control the numbers of

Canada Geese on Windermere. The Windermere Geese Management Group intend to

meet again in the spring of 2018. This meeting will review the surveying data collated

and monitor progress against the agreed actions. 

Page 54



page 18

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

Useful links: 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/leisure-culture-and-events/windermere-lake/

http://www.lakedistrict.gov.uk/caringfor/windermerelakeuserforum

https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/search?query=Windermere&lat=54.380685&lon=

-2.9067850000000135&type=place&view=list

https://scrt.co.uk/our-area/windermere-and-leven/

SLDC budget for Lake Windermere 2017/18

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/documents/s17248/2017-

18%20Draft%20Budget.pdf (copy and paste link into browser)

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/documents/s17249/2017-

18%20Draft%20Budget%20-%20Appendix%201.pdf

i The LDNPA partnership plan 2010-2015 can be accessed on the following link:

http://www.lakedistrict.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0007/409237/Summary-

Partnership-Plan-updated-210114.pdf

ii The LDNPA partnership plan 2015-2020 can be accessed on the following link:

http://www.lakedistrict.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0006/540348/6c.-Annex3-

The-Partnerships-Plan-with-track-changes-Part-1-and-Part-2.pdf

iii The nomination document for World Heritage Status can be accessed on the

following link:

http://www.lakedistrict.gov.uk/caringfor/projects/whs/lake-district-nomination

Page 55



Page 56



1  

South Lakeland District 

Council Lake Administration 

Committee 26TH January 2018 

Application to dredge an area of 200m2 to a depth 
of 1.5m in the area of plot 1 south of Grey Gables 

Storrs 
 

 

PORTFOLIO: Not Applicable 

REPORT FROM: David Sykes-Director People and Places 

REPORT AUTHOR: Frankie Flannigan – Principal Lake and Parking 
Services Officer 

WARDS: Bowness South 

KEY DECISION: Not Applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 That approval be given to an application for permission to dredge an area 
of 200m2 to a depth of 1.5m at plot 1 south of Grey Gables Storrs. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that the Lake Administration Committee approve the 
application. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 Plot 1 Grey Gables sits on the Eastern shore of Windermere Lake. The 
dredging forms part of a bigger project to erect a wet dock boat house and a 
package sewage treatment plant. The boathouse and sewage treatment 
plant are outside of The Councils registered title. The sewage treatment plant 
will feed into a soak-away at the rear of the property. The planning 
permission was initially refused by the LDNPA , however was subsequently 
granted on appeal (appendix 1 and 2). 

3.2 The application provides details of the proposed dredging. This will cover an 
area of 200m2 to a depth of 1,5m (appendix 7) There are likely to be 
populations of Lamprey (Lampetra Fluviatilis) and other protected aquatics 
species present in the location that is proposed to be dredged. All material 
that is removed from the lake bed is required to be checked for fish and 
other aquatic species and if found should be returned as quickly as possible 
(appendix 5) 

3.3 Due to the scale of the dredging required, there is likely to be a build-up of 
silt in the dredging area. Should the sediment and silt build up become 
noticeably thick work must be stopped for 30 minutes or until the silt has 

Page 57

Item No.10



2  

sufficiently dispersed (appendix 7) 

3.4 The applicant has provided confirmation of planning permission being 
granted by the planning inspectorate following an appeal against the refusal 
by the Lake District National Park Authority and a copy is attached for 
reference. Environment Agency approval has also been received along with 
the dredging application (appendix 1, 2 and 3). 

 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Informal consultation has taken place with The Lake Wardens. The Principal 
Lake and Parking Services Officer is also in possession of the relevant 
planning permissions and Environment Agency approvals. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 The Committee could decide to refuse the application however this action is 
not recommended. The Environment Agency have looked at this in great 
detail and The Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer is satisfied that 
appropriate conditions have been set for the dredging. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Not applicable 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 None 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no staff implications. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 There are no legal implications 

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 
 

Have you completed and Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

An impact assessment has not been 
carried out as this is an individual 
application which has already been 
granted planning permission and 
Environment Agency consent. 

 
7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 

Page 58



3  

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

An equality impact assessment has 
not been carried out as this is an 
individual application which has 
already been granted planning 
permission and Environment Agency 
consent. No equality and diversity 
implications arise out of this 
application 

7.6 Risk 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

That the committee 
refuse the application 

It is likely that this would 
be challenged by the 
applicant 

Approve the dredging as 
detailed. The Principal 
Lake and Parking 
Services Officer and 
Lake wardens are 
content with the 
application submitted. 

 
CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Frankie Flannigan, Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer , 
Phone 01539796165 , f.flannigan@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 
 
 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 
 

Appendix No.  

1 Notice of refusal of consent to application 

2 Notice of appeal decision allowed 

3 Application for permission to dredge on the bed of Windermere 
Lake 

4 Environment Agency permit to allow dredging 

5 Copy of Schedule 1 Environmental Agency Operation 

6 Location Plan 

7 Dredging location plan 

8 Construction method statement 

Page 59

mailto:f.flannigan@southlakeland.gov.uk


4  

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 
 

 
Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available 

None  

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 
 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

11/01/2018  11/01/2018 n/a n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a  n/a 11/01/2018 n/a 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s) 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

Page 60



 

( Appendix 1 
 

Lake District "' 
N<1tional P<1rk 

 
 

 
Reference No: 7/2015/5270 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 

NOTICE OF REFUSAL OF CONSENT TO APPLICATION 

 

 
To: Miss Clare Travers 

Architectural Design ltd 

One Queens Yard 

Victoria Street 

Windermere 

Cumbria 

LA231AN 

 
 

PART 1 - PARTICULARS OF APPLICATION 
 

1 Name and address of applicant 

 
 
 
 

 
2 Date of application 

 

3 Land to be developed 

 
 
 

4 Development forming the subject 

of the application 

Mr R Bowers 

Lady Close 

Farnley Lane 

Farrnley 

Otley 

LS21 2QD 

12 May 2015 

Plot 1, South of Grey Gables, Storrs 

Park, Bowness on Windermere, LA23 

3LH 

 

Erection of wet dock boathouse with 

dayroom above, dredging and 

package sewage treatment plant. 

Resubmission of 7/2014/5445 

 

PART 2-PARTICULARS OF DECISION 

 
IN PURSUANCE of their powers under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 

the Lake District National Park Authority as local planning authority HEREBY 

REFUSE PERMISSION for the development referred to in Part 1 above for the 

following reasons: 

 

 
1  Policy CS28 of the Lake District National Park Core Strategy (Local Plan 

Part 1) will only support lakeshore development where it provides facilities 

or services that have a direct lake use function for recreation or water based 

transport. The amount of upper floor space proposed is disproportionate to 

the reasonable needs of water based recreation and the proposal does not 

satisfy policy CS28. 

Page 61



 

7/2015/5270 2 of 3 

 

 
2  The proposed development would consolidate the newly developed 

character of this part of the lakeshore. This effect would be exacerbated by 

the height of the proposed development and the design which would feature 

extensive glazing and a prominent projecting glazed balcony to the lake 

facing elevation. Taken together these factors would result in an overtly 

domestic and dominant appearance which would be detrimental to the 

established character of this part of the lakeshore, contrary to policies 

CS10, 25 and 27 of the Lake District National Park Core Strategy (Local 

Plan Part 1). 

 

 

Date: 1 July 2015  

MURLEY MOSS, KENDAL Director of Sustainable Development 

 

Notes and informatives; 

 
National Planning Policy Framework  Statement: 

 
 

In accordance with paragraph 187 of the National Planning Policy Framework we 

have worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner and sought 

solutions to problems arising in relation to dealing with this application. We have 

done so through pre-application advice and determining the application in line with 

policy in a timely manner. 

Page 62



 

J   e The Planning Inspectorate 

Appendix 2 

 
 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 26 April  2016 

 

by Graeme Robbie  BA(Hons) BPI MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

Decision date: 16  May 2016 

Appea1Ref:APP/Q9495/\N/15/3141264 
Plot 1, South of Grey Gables, Storrs Park, Bowness-on-\Nindermere, 
\Nindermere LA23 3LH 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
against a refusal to  grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mr R Bowers against the decision of Lake Distr ict National Park 
Authorit y. 

• The application Ref 7/ 2015/5270, dated 12 May 2015, was refused by notice dated 
1 July 2015. 

• The development proposed is the erection of a wet dock boathouse with dayroom 
above,  dredging and package sewage treatment  plant. 

 

Decision 

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for the erection of a 
wet dock boathouse with dayroom above, dredging and package sewage 
treatment plant at Plot 1, South of Grey Gables, Storrs Park, 8owness-on 
Windermere, Windermere LA23 3LH in accordance with the terms of the 
application, Ref 7/2015/5270, dated 12 May 2015, subject to the following 
conditions: 

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years 
from the date of this  decision. 

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the following approved plans: 8126/13112-01;  8126/13112-02; 

8126/ 13112-04 Rev A; 8126/ 13112-05 Rev 8 and 8126/ 13112-06 Rev 
C. 

3) Prior to the commencement of works on site, a scheme for the protection  
of the lake during construction shall be submitted to and approved in  
writing by the local planning authorit y. All works shall then be undertaken 
in strict accordance with the approved  details. 

4) The roof of the building hereby permitted shall be covered and   
maintained in local green or blue-grey slates (that is slates which have 
been mined or quarried in Cumbria). Such slates shall be riven not sawn, 
and shall be laid in diminishing courses from eaves to  ridge. 

5) The stone facing to the external walls of the building hereby granted 
permission shall be natural local stone laid on its natural   bed. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



2 
 

( 

Appeal Decision APP/ Q9495/ W/ 15/ 3141264 
 

Procedural Matters 

2. I have used the description  of the development given on the planning  
application form with slight amendment to  remove the  superfluous,  as set  out 
in the banner heading, above. I am satisfied that neither party would be 
disadvantaged by this subtle change and I have therefore  determined the  
appeal accordingly. 

Main Issue 

3. The main issue is the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of 

the  surrounding area. 

Reasons 

4. The appeal site is currently used to provide lake access for boating activ ities. 
The current proposal would also provide wet-dock boathouse facilities with a 
dayroom above for water based transport and recreation purposes for the 

appellant on Lake Windermere.  I  note that planning permission  was granted 1 

in 2014 for a boathouse with dayroom above on the same site, and have also 

been referred to a previous approval 2 for a boathouse with dayroom facilities 
above on an adjoining  plot. 

5. The Council accept that it is not unreasonable to expect a range of facilities 
associated with water-based uses to be provided in such boathouse buildings. 
However, neither the range of uses that might reasonably be considered to be 
associated with a boathouse of this nature nor the thresholds or guidance of 
what might constitute an appropriate level of such space are set out in policy 
CS28 of the Lake District National Park Core Strategy (the Core Strategy). I 
agree therefore with the appellant that this becomes a matter of judgement in 
both respects. 

6. In this instance, the Council have raised concern over the amount of upper 
floor space within the proposed development, stating that it would be 
disproportionate to the reasonable needs of water based recreation. Whilst 
both parties have provided a comparison between the upper-floor space of the 
previously approved and current schemes, I have not been provided with any 
evidence that seeks to substantiate or justify the point at which that becomes 
disproportionate to the main use. 

7. It is accepted that the current appeal proposal would be larger than that 
previously approved. This would primarily be due to an increase in both the 
eaves height and overall height of the building. As a result of this the amount 
of usable floor space within the appeal proposal - ie; floor space with at least 2 
metres headroom - would be greater. It has not however been explained how 
or why the increased floor space would no longer be proportionate. Given the 
range of uses identified in the officer's report, I consider it to be the case that 
the additional usable floor space would provide greater flexibilit y and ease of 
use for, for example , the dry storage of bulky items or the drying of sails. 

8. For the  reasons set out above therefore, I  find that the proposal is directly   
related to  a lake use function  for  water-based  transport and recreation 
purposes.  I  have not  been provided  with substantiv e or compelling  evidence to 

 

1   7/ 2014/   54 4 5 -  Approved -  2 December 2014 
2    7/ 20 1 2/ 5031  -  Approved -  13 March 2012 

 

Page 64



3 
 

r 
Appeal Decision APP/ Q9495 / W/ 15 / 3141264 

 

demonstrate that the amount of upper-floor floor space is disproportionate to a 
wet-dock boathouse of the size and type proposed, and the Council have not 
sought to demonstrate that there are other more feasible or viable locations for 
the boathouse. In  these circumstances, I  am unable to find any conflict with  
Core Strategy policy CS28. 

9. The A592 main road between Bowness-on-Windermere and Newby Bridge runs 
close to the lakeshore at this point. The area is very much characterised by 
substantial detached dwellings located along both sides of the main road.   
These are sited in either well screened and heavily wooded plots, or more open 
plots such as the appeal site. A number of lakeshore boathouses and  
substantial lakeside dwellings are evident in the vicinity of the appeal site, 
including a similarly scaled and designed boathouse currently nearing  
completion on the  adjoining site to the  south. 

10. From my observations during my site visit however, I find that the appeal 
proposal would sit comfortably alongside the lakeshore. Whilst the boathouse 
would be of a similar scale, character and design to the boathouse nearing 
completion on the adjoining site. Both would be seen in the context of the 
heavily wooded promontory to the north, and in amongst the groups of trees 
typical of the lakeshore and its  hinterland . 

11. I am also mindful that planning permission already exists for an alternative 
boathouse scheme on this site and in broadly the same position as the proposal 
currently before me.  However, I  saw that the landform gently slopes down to  
the lakeshore.   Although the current proposal  would be higher to both eaves  
and ridge level than that previously approved, I find that its scale would 
nonetheless sit comfortably within the lakeshore scene. The building would be  
set back into gentle slope, masking the extent of stonework closer to the 
lakeshore,  whilst the  break provided between the stonework  at  ground floor 
and the timber at first floor would articulate the elevations, thereby creating a 
pleasingly proportioned building. 

12. Whilst not reflective  of Lake District vernacular materials, I  nonetheless find  
the upper-floor treated timber facing material to be appropriate to the nautical 
nature of the building. Indeed, I find that the proposal appropriately and 
satisfactorily encapsulates the appropriate character and appearance of a 
contemporary boathouse; in my view it would be neither dominating nor 
domestic in its character or appearance. 

13. The proposal would therefore be directly related to a direct use function for 
water-based transport and recreation purposes. I am satisfied that the level of 
internal space provided  within the building is proportionate  and related to its  
use as a wet-dock boathouse with dayroom above, and that the overall scale, 
materials and appearance would not harm the character or appearance of the 
surrounding area.  I  therefore conclude that the proposal would accord with  
Core Strategy policies CS28, CSlO and CS25 and would be an acceptable form 
of development, having regard to the development plan and the National  
Planning Policy Framework as a whole. Together, these policies seek to protect 
and complement the outstanding landscape qualities, character  and 
biodiversity of the lakes, the lakeshores and the Lake District National Par k as 
a whole, whilst recognising the need for lim ited lakeshore  development. 

 
 
 
 

Page 65



4  

Appeal  Decision APP/Q9495/W/15/3141264 
 

 

Conditions 

14. In addition to the time limit condition, I consider conditions specifying the 
approved plans and materials to be necessary in order to provide certainty and 
in the interests of the character and appearance of the area, respectively. 
Given the proximity of the development to, and involving the dredging of, the 
lakeshore, I agree that a condition relating to the protection of the lakeshore 
around the development site is necessary in the interests of ecology and the 
character and appearance of the area. 

Conclusion 

15. For the reasons set out, and having regard to all other matters raised, I 
conclude that the appeal should be allowed. 

 

INSPECTOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 66



 

Appendix 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

i.!i!...1 
.... /· . ..'; 'viI! 

.•,:1:i  ,'.>.H 

I ,i:r:.. 
1.,nd.X, t .cL 

 
 

:.}Li., 
 

·1 .• 

I     "-     _;\   i..! 

,,; ... ·.) 
 

 

 
 
 

:.i.J, ..al,;\ 

' ,. 
1-  -..',..       •.  •,} 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I    I    ,l ,,J'/ 

 
 
 

South Lakeland District Cou 

Lake Wardens01 
Ferry r 

Bowness-on-W inderm 
Cumbria    LA23: 

Tel: 015394 42: 
Fax: 015394 47l 

e-m ail:  lake.wardens@southlakeland.gov 
 
 
 
 

Application for permission to dredge on the bed of Lake Windermere 

for a specific purpose and occasion only. 

Note: The Council owns the land below the 128.3 Datum line. 

 

  

 
  

     

 
Name of Agent.  A!':f-H-:l  1 E   c_ "-1 . ,<..A   i..... \()<=-"S\ t'-.1  

 '-'\ AIZ...O 

         

This form should be completed and returned to:-South Lakeland District Council, 

Lake Wardens Office, Ferry Nab, Bowness on Windermere, Cumbria, LA23 3JH. All 
applications must be accompanied by certified copies of any relevant plans and 

permissions  granted by the Lake District National Park Authority (planning Consent) 

 

Page 67

mailto:lake.wardens@southlakeland.gov


Permit number 
EPR/DB3492QW 3 

 

 
Appendix 4 

 
 

Permit 

The Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 

Permit number 

EPR/DB3492QW 

The Environment Agency hereby authorises, under regulation 13 of the Environmental Permitting (England 

and Wales) Regulations 2016 

Mr. Roger Bowers ("the operator") 

of 

Lady Close 

Farnley Lane 

Farnley 

OTLEY 

LS21 2QD 

to operate the following flood risk activities: 

1. Construction of new boathouse structure with associated wet dock and lake   access. 

2. Temporary dewatering on the Lake shore (Cofferdam  and scaffold combination) 

3. Dredging of the Lake bed. 

at 

Plot 1, south of Grey Gables, Storrs Park, Bowness-on-Windermere 

LA23 3LH 

National Grid Reference SD 39315 93948 

 
to the extent authorised by and subject to the conditions  of this permit. 

 

 

Name Date 

 

/\ ' 
 
Peter Miles 

Team Leader 

Partnerships  & Strategic Overview,  Cumbria 

 
 
 
 

 
16/02/2017 

Authorised on behalf of the Environment Agency 

r 

Page 68



Permit number 
EPR/DB3492QW 4 

 

r 
 

 

Conditions 

 
1 Management 

1.1 General management 

1.1.1 The operator shall manage and operate the activities: 

(a) in accordance with a written management system that identifies and minimises risks of flooding, 

impact on drainage and environmental harm so far as is reasonably practicable, including those 

risks arising from operations, maintenance, accidents, incidents, non-conformances and those 

drawn to the attention of the operator as a result of complaints; and 

(b) using sufficient competent persons and resources. 

1.1.2 Records demonstrating compliance with condition 1.1.1 shall be  maintained. 

1.1.3 Any person having duties that are or may be affected by the matters set out in this permit shall have 

convenient access to a copy of the permit. 

 

2 Operations 

2.1 Permitted activities 

2.1.1 The operator is only authorised to carry out the activities specified in schedule 1 table S1.1 (the 

"activities"). 

 

2.2 The site 

2.2.1 The activities shall not extend beyond the site, being the land shown edged in red on the site plan at 

schedule 2 to this permit and showing National Grid Reference SD 39315 93948 . 

 

2.3 Operating techniques 

2.3.1 The operator shall use appropriate measures, including but not limitedto those in the Method of 

Work: 

(a) to minimise sediment mobilisation 

(b) to minimise impact on biodiversity 

(c) to ensure there is no increase to flood risk or detrimental impact on drainage; 

(d) for the storage and disposal or waste produced; and 

(e) to prevent and minimise environmenat l harm. 

 

 
2.3.2 All liquids in containers, whose emission to water or land could cause pollution, shall be provided 

with secondary containmen,tunless the operator has used other appropriate measures to prevent or 

where that is not practicable, to minimise, leakage and spillage from the primary container. 

2.3.3 Measures shall be taken to ensure that the activities do not cause the spread of invasive non-native 

species or plant or animaldiseases. 

Page 69



Permit number 

EPR/DB3492QW 7  

Appendix 5 
 

S_chedule1 -  Operations 
 

 
Table S1.1 activities 

Activity 

reference 

Description of activities Limits of activities 

 Permanent Works 

P1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P2 

Construction of new boathouse 

structure within the main river 

floodplain, with associated wet dock 

and lake access. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dredging of the Lake bed. 

The activity shall be commenced within 4 
months of the date of the grant of the permit 
and completed within 12 months of 
commencement. 

The activity shall only be carried out on 
Lake Windermere designated Main River. 

The structure shall conform to the submitted 
Method Statement and Drawing Nos. 
8112/13112-04 Rev B, B126/13112-05 Rev 

C, B126/131112-0g Rev D provided in the 
application. 

 
There are likely to be populations of 
Lamprey (Lampetra fluviatilis) and other 

protected aquatic species present in the 
location that is proposed to be dredged. All 

material that is removed from the lake bed is 
required to be checked for fish and other 

aquatic species and if found should be 
returned to the lake as quickly as possible. 

Due to the scale of the dredging required, 
there is likely to be a large build-up of silt in 
the dredging area. Should the sediment and 
silt build-up become noticeably thick then 
work must be stopped for 30 minutes or until 
the silt has sufficiently dispersed. 

The activity shall be carried out accordingto 
the submitted Method Statement and 
Drawing No. 8126/13112-05 Rev C 
provided in the application. 

 Temporary or enabling works 

T1 Temporary dewatering on the Lake 

shore of the main river (Cofferdam and 

scaffold combination) 

The activity shall affect no more than 25 

metres of the bank of the Lake at any one 
time. 

Bio-security measures are a condition of 
consent. This is required before entering or 
leavingsite. Any machinery or equipment 
(including dry suits, waders etc.) to be used 
in the lake must be high pressure washed or 
steam cleaned- with clean tap water, (not 
lake water); Machinery/ equipment must be 
dried; Once dry, the machinery/equipment 
must be kept completely dry for 48hours 
prior to use in the lake. This is to minimise 
the risk of crayfish plague and other 
organisms surviving if present. Refer to the 
DEFRA / NNSS Check, Clean Dry 

campaign: 

Page 70



Permit number 

EPR/DB3492QW 8  

Table 51.1 activities 

Activity 

reference 

Description of activities Limits of activities 

  https://secure.fera.defra.gov.uk/nonnativesp 
ecies/checkcleandry/index.cfm 

Informative: A cement spill into the water 
body can be detrimental to aquatic species. 
Special care must be taken when dealing 
with cement. Spill kits must be available on 
site for any machinery fuel spillages. Other 
proposed methods of pollution mitigation 
and water contamination prevention are fine 
providing the method is carried out as is 
formally stated. 

You must visually monitor downstream on a 
regular basis for any signs of pollution. If 
any pollution is observed work should be 
stopped immediately and the Environment 
Agency informed on 0800 807060. You 
must also carry out an investigation to 
identify the cause of the pollution and the 
findings of any such investigation recorded. 
Measures to prevent further pollution from 
occurring should be put in place before 
recommencement of work and following 
advice from the Environment Agency. 

The temporary works must be completely 
removed on completion of the permanent 
works. 

Page 71



 

•t 

( Appendix 6 

purd\aH  TMconvacu>t· must be  ..  ,,.lied wllh al  Mt•te ,rid p,ae11cehh• on 1,ie belOI'• 

commencing COl'l'1N<:t,on  I wortc.1. 

The conHKtor mu11 ch.c  k end verity 111 bulldll'\O a,nd tilt d • .ii Mw•   nvef1 i.w11 

androed.. VM     CON*':toon por111 p,io, to11an of  wort s Arly d1SC,.pen,dN; foundon .. ,. 

,,..,.... be no11h«1 10   thtl Atch'1eci pnor 10  wotb ConimtnC#IQ 

Ttw, dr1wing mu&1 be ,Nd in oon,.ncuon w11tl end c:Mdled ag...-..1 eoy ttruc11,.1t.i or 
1pec:ialilet cfr1w,ng1 I dtlttlll   I••- lrom Structural  Engineer! 

 

TM  conU.CIOf Iii  to ca,ry OUI 1h1  woril111'1co  withCU!Tent ll..116d.-.g R          t lon l 

and  NH  B.C req.warMl'III WMfl  they eppt,,, 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Grey Go.bles 

 
 
 
 
 
 

pr oposed boathouse site 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADL architects 
 

Client Title 

 

Mr R BOWERS DREDGING LOCATION PLAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
l:) 

vi 

a
UJ 

Job Drawn   DJF Approved 

BOAT HOUSE AT PLOT NO  1, 

Date  MAY 14  ..J 
<{ 
a( 

:::> 

SOUTH OF GREY GABLES, 

STORRS,   WINDERMERE 

 
 

One Queens YarV_icto_ri-_a 

Scale @ A4  1:1250 

 
DrawingNo   B126 /1311 2-0 3 

Chartered Architects 

re: t_  '" : .'.'".".e e Cumbria_':A2_3_: AN_: _'-!. 

@ Reserved 

Rev 

 

1- 

:
u
i: 

Page 72



Chon< 

o,c.._.......,.....
, 

- _ _,_._.., -
----------·-.. 

REV ORIN   notes 

AEV A  19  JAN  2015 REVISED DIMENSI ONS NI n.c--.,.... _...-.. -- --   """---••·---..--     .. 

REV 8 02  JAN 20 17 Sund extent indicated _.,._.     ,_h 
====-=;..-..:.·':.:::::::-..::  :..:!.:::-=::: I _  ,.,..,.._.....c......, .....  ..l_N.V....,....    ........ 

t--.. 

• .-4 

"rj 

i:: 
<l) 

0.. 
0.. 

<r:: 

I 

I Legend 

I 

"--"·'"....·...,.-··---..--- -----1..-.....-.,t 

Shoreline • current OS mapping 

- -·-.... 

GREY GABLES 

Shoreline - historical OS mapping (191 3) 

Shoreline - Liverpool datum (39.197m ) 

D 

D 

D 

D 

1:200 t-,., ,.)   f  i  t  i  ?   Ll._jO

AOL architects 

CX) 

r.o,

Mr R BOWERS SHORELINE PLAN 

Job 

BOAT HOUSE AT PLOT NO 1, 

SOUTH OF GREY GABLES . 

STORRS, WINDERMERE 

o,,wnOJF App,o11ed Date  MAY 2014 

Scolo. A3    1 ; 200 © Rese,ved 

I 

Appendix 7

P
age 73



 

o.. w,,.  No    6112 /13112-0 4   Rev   B .,: 

Clwtered Ndl itects - 

SITE PLAN 
One s  Yard Street w.noemwre CU     LAll lAH. UK 

Tel:+44  (0)  15394 43721 Fax: +44  (0)  1539446728 
www.   larchlttcts.co.uk 

P
age 74

http://www/


One Queens Yard Victoria Street Windermere Tel: 015394 43721 Email: adl@adlarchit ects.co.uk  

( 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

CONSTRUCTION  METHOD STATEMENT 
 

Applicant:  Mr  R Bowers 

 
Proposal:   Proposed Boathouse 

 
Appendix 8 

 

 

Site Address: Plot 1, South of Grey Gables, Windermere 

 
January 2017 

Page 75



B126/13112 PAGE 2  

( 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 

Plot No 1 was granted planning permission in 2007 for a timber jetty which has been 

erected and subsequently in 2015, for the boathouse. The total area of the land is 

approximately 0.14 ha which is mainly unused at present. 

 
2. AIMS OF THE SCHEME 

 

To provide a safe and secure boathouse that is appropriately sized to harbour an 

average sized boat at all water levels. Also to provide a family day room with a 

projecting balcony that overlooks Lake Windermere. 

 
3. ACCESS 

 

Vehicular access to the site is via A529 through a metal gate as existing and also via 

Lake Windermere. 

 
4. PROPOSED  DEVELOPMENT 

 

The development involves the construction of a partially steel framed, slate roofed, 

stone clad two-storey building containing a single storey high reinforced  concrete  wet 

dock boathouse and a WC to the ground floor and a Day Room with a balcony to the 

First Floor as shown on the approved plans. 

 

New steps will be built on either side of the boathouse with retaining walls with 

render finish. The shore within the site boundaries to either side will be reinstated 

and made good using existing material. 

The position of the boathouse in relation to Lake Windermere, has been determined 

by the Shoreline Liverpool Datum level {39.197m A.O.D) and the existing jetty. 

 
5. PROPOSED  CONSTRUCTION 

 

Siting of the boathouse necessitates largely 'on shore' excavation for the concrete 

base and wall foundations. This will be carried out inland of a profiled steel sheet 

bund to facilitate dry construction. Once bunded, the site will pumped dry using 

filter pump to prevent silt from within the site being dispersed within the bay. 

Excavation for the necessary foundations and dredging will be carried out within the 

bund. The bund will be large enough to allow for all the dredging to  take place and  no 

dredging will be carried out outside the bund in  order  to  prevent  disturbance  of 

Page 76



B126/13112 PAGE 3  

 

the adjacent lake bed and to avoid cross contamination or dispersal in into the water 

of dredged material. 

 

Excavated material will be ret ained on site for backfilling and landscaping works. 

 
All temporary shuttering and scaffolding will be erected on the shore or within the 

bunded area. 

Machinery i.e. excavator, winch, compressor, piling hammer and pumps will be 

required for the works and also the construction of the superstructure. Initially the 

excavator will work from the barge to build the coffer dam. Ready-mix concrete will  be 

delivered via a pump from the access road visa the A592 

 

6. POLLUTION PREVENTION 

 
A temporary bund will be formed to separate the working sire form the lake during 

construction . The excavation in addition to a sandbag dam will isolate the working 

area from the lake. All contaminated or dirty water aris ing within the working areas 

will be pumped onto the adjacent cartilage and be allowed to soak away. 

Any water within the bund that becomes contaminated by the works, will  be  pumped 

out and discharged sufficiently far up the site to purge it and soak away before re-

entering the lake. 

All fuels will be stored away from the lake or in the vehicles. Should a spillage occur, 

on board bunding and oil mats will be used. 

 

Mixing of cement will be carried out 15m away from the shoreline 

Bund will be in position till the superstructure is completed. 

It will be ensured that the vehicles used on site do not leak. 

 
All construction materials will be delivered by land and any waste or unused 

construction materials will be removed by land. 

Lake bed dredging outside the bund, to allow boat access to the dock, will be carried 

out after 'on shore' construction and again any excavated material will be retained  on 

the site and not deposited in the lake. Any back filling of foundation trenches can be 

carried out using excavated material from within the bund. There shall be no imported 

lake bed material. 

 

7. TIMING AND DURATION 

 
The works will start in April 2017, subject to receiving all the approvals. It is anticipated 

that the works will last 1 year. 

Page 77



8126/13112 PAGE 4  

r 
 

 

 

 

8. COMPLETION 

 
At a suitable point the bunded area will be refilled, either by pump from the adjacent 

lake or by removal of appropriate bund sheeting . The re-filling will be carried out 

slow to avoid adjacent silt washing into the recently dredged areas. 

 

Upon removal of the bund walls the jetty and adjacent land areas, boundary fence 

etc can be made good. 

Page 78



Document is Restricted

Page 79

Item No.11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 85

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Progress Report
	7 2018/19 to 2022/23 Draft Budget
	2018 - 2019 Draft Budget - Appendix 1

	8 Windermere Ferry Ticket Sales System
	Windermere Ferry Ticket Sales System - Appendix 1
	Windermere Ferry Ticket Sales System - Appendix 2

	9 Windermere Lake Wardens and Rangers Annual Report 2016-2017
	Windermere Lake Wardens and Rangers Annual Report 2016-17 - Appendix 1

	10 Application to dredge in the area of Plot 1, south of Grey Gables, Storrs
	11 Update on Commercial Leases and Encroachments
	Part II - Update on Commercial Leases and Annual Encroachments - Appendix 1




